
 

 

CAMBRIDGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST 
MEETING MINUTES 

October 24, 2024 at 4:00 p.m. 
Conducted via Zoom and in person (City Hall, Ackermann Room) 

Trustees Present in Person:  Yi-An Huang, Chair; Teresa Cardosi, Elaine DeRosa, Jim Stockard, Susan 
Schlesinger, Alyson Stein, Elaine Thorne 

Trustees Present via Zoom:  Raffi Freeman 

Trustees Absent:  Krissandra Robinson 

Staff Present:  Chris Cotter, Housing Director; Cassie Arnaud, Senior Manager for Housing 
Development; Janet Haines, Housing Planner; Christine Yu, Associate 
Housing Development Planner; Anna Dolmatch, Senior Manager for 
Homeownership; Antonia Finley, Homebuyer Coordinator 

Others Present:   City Councilor Sumbul Siddiqui, Young Kim, Norma Wassel, Cindy Guo, 
Jean Hannon, Cathy Higgins, James Williamson, Johanna Coggan, 
Federico Muchnik, Ahlam I., Rebecca Lavine, Aminat Ali, Sue Reinert, 
Lee Farris, Heather Hoffman, Catiana, Matthew Robayna, Yassin 
Ibrahim, William Betsch, Lara Plaskon, Emily Soloman, Zach Boughner, 
Yohanna Reid 

The meeting was called to order at 4:02 p.m. Mr. Cotter explained that this meeting of the Affordable 
Housing Trust is being held in a hybrid fashion pursuant to applicable requirements, that all votes would 
be taken by roll call. He then confirmed via roll call that each remote participant could hear the meeting 
and was audible to others.  

 

MEETING MINUTES 

Upon a motion moved, seconded, and approved by roll call of eight in favor and one absent (Ms. Ms. 
Robinson), it was voted to approve the minutes for the meeting of September 26, 2024.  

 

HOUSING DEPARTMENT UPDATE 

HomeBridge Program: There were five homes purchased through this program in the last two months 
and three are under agreement.  

Jefferson Park Federal: The CHA held a groundbreaking event on October 2nd.  

35 Harvey Street: Homeowners Rehab Inc. (HRI) scheduled a ribbon cutting event for November 19th.   

16-18 Wendell Street: The CHA is continuing to work on making upgrades to the interior and is 
preparing for initial occupancy in the coming months.  



 

 

2072 Massachusetts Avenue: The Capstone/Hope/MPZ development team held their first AHO 
community meeting on this project on October 9th. Due to technical issues, they are holding a repeat 
virtual-only meeting on October 30th.  

4 Mellen/1627 Massachusetts Avenue: HRI is beginning to prepare for construction closing.  

Neville Place: Staff are in discussion with Neville Communities about construction closing happening 
soon. 

1055 Cambridge Street: Construction is complete on this Inclusionary project; two of the three units 
have been sold and the third is expected to close shortly.   

 

OTHER UPDATES 

40 Thorndike Street: Leasing at these buildings has begun.  

City Funded Vouchers: The Housing Committee held another meeting on October 15th to discuss city-
funded vouchers. Staff discussed with the Committee about households which may benefit from this 
program.  

Multi-Family Zoning: The zoning petition has been officially filed. An information session on the 
proposed Multi-family Zoning petition is scheduled for October 24th by Zoom and an in-person open 
house will be held at the Senior Center on October 29th. These are opportunities for the public to hear 
about the proposed changes and share questions and comments. Mr. Freeman suggested adding this 
topic to next month’s agenda, to which Mr. Cotter agreed.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Cotter noted the Trust had received many written comments from the public regarding two agenda 
items, the Walden Square II development and Print Shop Condominiums, and that several attendees 
would like to provide comment at the meeting. He recommended that the Trust open the meeting to 
public comment.  

Upon a motion moved, seconded, and approved by roll call eight in favor and one absent (Ms. 
Robinson), it was:  

VOTED: to open the meeting to Public Comment. 

Young Kim commented that the Trust should grant Winn Development funding for its Walden Square 
project with conditions, such as having a land value evaluation and being consistent with other design 
requirements. He commented that for-profit organizations are taking advantage of the AHO. 

Norma Wassel commented that she lives around Walden Square and is a social worker. She asked for a 
response from the City about her questions related to the Planning Board’s concerns. She also asked if 



 

 

additional community meetings were still required when Winn changed its designs and if the steps in 
the AHO process were being met.  

Ahlam I. commented that she is a Print Shop representative. She noted that there are seven vacant units 
that are not in a condition to be sold She advocated that the Trust provide much needed financial 
support. She stated her opposition to converting the condo units into rental units as the residents are 
committed to homeownership She requested that the Trust provide financial assistance in any way they 
can 

Rebecca Lavine commented that she is a resident at 125 Harvard Street. She noted her concerns about 
the poor construction and communication regarding the Print Shop. She stated that she was told that 
the problems are the homeowners’ fault since the beginning, such as the garage door replacements and 
bursting pipes, and that it was their fault for why the Trust funding was not yet available. She noted that 
the Print Shop condo owners want to unlock the funds, and also urged the Trust to allow homeowners 
to get out of their restrictions.  

Federico Muchnik commented that he read the latest Walden Square materials in this meeting’s packet 
and did not think that the changes were significant enough. He claimed that there are still many 
significant issues with the project and that a third option should be considered. He also noted his 
petition that opposes the project has over 1,400 signatures.  

Heather Hoffman commented that she did not see any mention of easements in the Walden Square 
materials. She believed that the pass-through looks better, but that it does not address the major issues 
that were brought up previously. She understood that there is a deposition with the neighbor. She 
noted that it is unclear that there was an analysis conducted on whether this project meets design 
standards but commented that she appreciated that more trees are being saved.  

James Williamson commented that he lives in CHA housing near Walden Square. He commented that he 
would like to see additional community engagement that was less limiting. He claimed that Winn has a 
criminal history and was shocked to hear that they monetized the playgrounds on the property. He 
commented that people do not want more density and that the unit maximum for the new buildings 
should have been 50.  

Councilor Sumbul Siddiqi commented that she appreciated the time that the City has spent talking to 
the condo owners at the Print Shop. She noted that those residents are facing significant financial 
problems, but she understood that the City needs to think about this issue more. She acknowledged the 
assistance that the Trust has already provided and encouraged the Trust to continue the conversation 
on how to address affordable homeownership throughout the city.  

Upon a motion moved, seconded, and approved by roll call eight in favor and one absent (Ms. 
Robinson), it was:  

VOTED: to close Public Comment. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Walden Square II Update 



 

 

Mr. Cotter provided an update to the Trust on the development of Walden Square II which received 
Trust funding approval in June 2024. The funding was made contingent on the Trust’s receipt and review 
of the Planning Board’s final advisory design consultation report, which was provided at the August 1, 
2024 Trust meeting. The Planning Board’s Final Report of Affordable Housing Overlay (AHO) Design 
Consultation report contained comments and recommendations which fell into three broad categories: 
circulation through the site, canopy tree planting/landscape design, and exterior façade design.  

Over the last few months, City staff from various departments have met with Winn to discuss 
opportunities for improvement, including changes to the landscaping plan, facades, and site circulation. 
The materials provided to the Trust in their September 2024 briefing materials include an overview of 
the changes Winn will be making to address comments from the Planning Board and staff. Staff 
recommend that the Trust accept the Planning Board Design Review Report and confirm that that 
condition of the Trust’s funding has been satisfied. 

Ms. Schlesinger commented that she has a lot of faith in the City staff who have reviewed the materials 
and asked if there are any remaining issues that Winn has not agreed to. Ms. Arnaud informed the Trust 
that there are trade-offs that Winn had to balance, but the major issues have been addressed. Ms. Stein 
asked if Winn owns the land, to which staff responded that they do. Staff provided context about the 
easement on the site.  

Ms. Cardosi commented that many public comments that the Trust received mentioned a third design 
option, which she noted would have required the demolition of an existing building, which is not 
feasible, and that the alternative option had fewer family-sized units. She said that safety was her main 
concern but noted that she is satisfied if the experts are as well. 

Chair Huang commented that this has been a challenging project since the beginning. There have been 
substantial changes as a result of people speaking out and being part of the community process. 
However, Cambridge has created an opportunity for residents to hold developers up to a high standard. 
The Planning Board did a thorough job reviewing this project. There will be continued changes that will 
make the plan better. Chair Huang acknowledged those who opposed this project and expressed 
appreciation for their voices. These conversations are to recognize that people are allowed a space to 
speak while also understanding that the project needs to move forward. He noted that not everyone is 
going to agree on everything related to this project, but that this will be providing much needed 
affordable housing. 

Mr. Stockard commented that there are hundreds, even thousands, of people who are waiting for an 
affordable housing unit and that the Trust needs to imagine those voices while having these tough 
conversations.  

Upon a motion moved, seconded, and approved by roll call of eight in favor and one absent (Ms. 
Schlesinger), it was: 

VOTED: to accept the Planning Board AHO Design Review Report – Walden Square II. 

Print Shop Condominium 

Mr. Cotter updated the Trust on the  Print Shop Condominium. In October 2023,  the Trust approved up 
to $3,000,000 to assist with roof replacement and exterior work.  Staff anticipates this closing will be 



 

 

completed later this year. The consulting agreement with Just A Start has been completed and signed.  
Owners  have brought other concerns to City Councilors, outlined in a letter sent by Councillors Siddiqui 
and Sobrinho-Wheeler and provided to the Trust. The City Manager and Housing staff have met with 
Print Shop owners over the past few months, and they requested an opportunity to provide comments 
to the Trust.  Staff are preparing additional information for the Trust to give context for these issues 
within the larger affordable homeownership program.  

Chair Huang commented that the Print Shop owners that showed up today are only a small number, but 
the meetings held at the property involved a broad set of residents. There are deep challenges that 
started early with the the building, especially water damage. Some challenges are more routine, and 
some are common to all buildings, while others are more specific to all-affordable homeownership. All 
buildings will need repairs.  He urged the Trust to think about how expected capital repairs impacts the 
homeownership program, recognizing that there is a commitment to homeowners, but buying a home 
involves taking on some risk.  HThe City often ends up where people go when things aren’t going well. 
The Print Shop issues need to be contextualized across the program. Chair Huang noted that there are 
no perfect answers to these challenges, but the goal is to have an approach that is fair and meets needs, 
both specific and program-wide. . 

Ms. Dolmatch added that  the Trust previously committed funding to the Park View Cooperative, the 
first resident-controlled entity that the Trust funded. That process led to the development of guidelines 
for the Trust to use in reviewing future funding request.  She noted that if the Trust is going to have an 
expanded role in funding affordable homeownership, the Trust should look at how to ensurethat all 
affordable units are treated equitably.  

Mr. Freeman commented that these issues seem both unfortunate while some are common and asked if 
there is a recourse against the contractor who completed the allegedly bad work. Mr. Cotter answered 
that there is not an opportunity to do that.  

In response to a question regarding other capital issues, Ms. Dolmatch answered that there are a wide 
range of issues that residents brought up. The Trust funding includes a requirement that the condo have 
a  capital needs assessment (CNA) completed. The CNA will identify other issues, both expected 
maintenance and replacement and any extraordinary issues. The CNA will also look at costs for the work 
and reserve needs.This may require another Trust discussion to look at what types of work should be 
paid for by condo associations and what projects would be need additional support.  

Ms. Dolmatch noted that it would be ideal to have CNAs completed for many developments in the City’s 
portfolio, as many units are close to twenty years old. i. Ms. Thorne asked what the Trust will fund after 
a CNA is completed to which Ms. Dolmatch said that that is for the Trust to decide.  

In response to a question regarding the seven vacant units, staff noted that the vacant units are not 
uninhabitable. The units are being held for several reasons. Ongoing roof leaks may impact units on the 
upper floors. The exterior project may require some temporary relocation, which is complex. Having 
vacant units makes that process easier to manage. The units will be marketed for sale when the pending 
roof and exterior projects are complete.  

Trustees discussed the need to balance in this situation. While they understood that homeowners are  
responsible for the regular maintenance of their units, they also acknowledged that the participants in 



 

 

the City’s homeownership program are lower income. Questions were raised about whether  there 
should be a change to the target income level for the program. There are many policy questions raised 
by this issue and more context will be provided at future meetings.   

Trust discussed their role in this situation as tand how to ensure that homeowners receive the support 
while also maintaining responsibility for their units. Mr. Cotter noted that the City’s Home Improvement 
Program (HIP)  is an option for ssistance to eligible homeowners. The Print Shop project is outside the 
capacity of HIP. Many buildings in the City’s portfolio are starting to get to the age where they will also 
need major capital repairs soon, and staff will continue to gather information on what is happening 
across the program.  

Mr. Cotter stated that this discusison will be continued at an upcoming meeting. s 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Upon a motion moved, seconded, and approved by roll call of eight in favor and one absent (Ms. 
Robinson), it was voted to adjourn the meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 5:28 p.m. 

The next meeting is scheduled for November 21, 2024 at 4:00 p.m.  

 

Meeting Materials:  

 Agenda 
 Minutes from the Trust’s September 26, 2024 meeting 
 Project Update 
 Walden Square II – AHO Design Review Update 10.24.2024 
 Walden Square II – Winn Responses to CAHT 
 Walden Square II – Additional Material from Winn 
 Walden Square II – Planning Board AHO Design Review Report 8.1.2024 
 Walden Square II – Planning Board AHO Design Review Report 20240722 
 Print Shop Condominium – Update and Letter Transmittal to CAHT 10.24.2024 
 Letter from Councilors with Print Shop Concerns 


